
 

Town of Eliot Planning Board meeting of February 21
st
, 2012 

Town of Eliot 
REGULAR PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES February 21st, 2012 7PM 

 
ITEM 1 - ROLL CALL  

Present: Present: Steve Beckert – Chairman, Jeff Duncan – Vice Chairman, 
Dennis Lentz, Larry Bouchard and Greg Whalen - Alternative. 

 
Steve Beckert appointed Greg Whalen as a voting member for this meeting.  
 
ITEM 2 – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

ITEM 3 – MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 

ITEM 4 - REVIEW AND APPROVE MINUTES AND INVOICES AS NEEDED 
 
MOTION: 
Dennis Lentz made the motion to approve the minutes of the October 18th, 2011 
Planning Board meeting, as written. 
Greg Whalen seconded the motion. 
Vote: 3-0 (Jeff Duncan abstained due to absence from the meeting), Chair 
concurs.  
 
ITEM 5 - REVIEW OF "NOTICE OF DECISION" LETTERS, AS NEEDED 
 
The Board reviewed the notice of decision letters for AMP Realty and the Eliot Community 
Services building. The letters were issued as written.  
 
ITEM 6 - PUBLIC APPLICATIONS OR PLANNING BOARD BUSINESS TO BE 
CONSIDERED 
 

A. Discussion with Mike Dupuis, Eliot Sewer Committee Chairman, 
regarding a proposed sewer system standards ordinance.  

 
Mike Dupuis, Chairman of the Sewer Committee, stated that he was present tonight to ask 
the Planning Board to become more involved with the Sewer Committee on the proposed 
sewer line expansion, which will extend sewer to some parcels located in the TIF district. 
He explained that a new pumping station would be constructed on Beech Road and a new 
forcemain run from it down Beech Road where it would connect with the existing gravity 
sewer line on State Road. He stated that this will allow the town to use TIF money 
approved to combat existing infiltration problems. He stated that the Sewer Committee will 
be holding a workshop on March 21st at 5:30 with the Business Development Committee 
and encouraged the Planning Board to attend. He stated that Underwood Engineers would 
also be present, possibly with a cost summary, so that the town could start soliciting bids 
from contractors. He stated that the other part of the project was the adoption of an 
ordinance regulating sewer system standards, which he had already submitted to the 
Planning Board for comment. He stated that the ordinance would establish a protocol and 
accountability within the departments and would be administered by Joel Moulton. He 
stated that in addition to the workshop he mentioned earlier, an informational session 
would most likely be held at the Regatta Room with Underwood Engineers to explain the 
details of the project to the public. 



 

Town of Eliot Planning Board meeting of February 21
st
, 2012 2 

 
Steve Beckert stated that the Planning Board received a proposed ordinance from the 
Code Enforcement Officer on February 15th, 2012 titled “Sewer System Standards” who 
stated in his attached memo that the Sewer Committee had already approved the 
proposed ordinance.  
 
Mike Dupuis stated that was incorrect. At this point, the Sewer Committee is seeking input 
from the Planning Board, but a draft ordinance had not yet been agreed upon by the 
members of the Sewer Committee.  
 
Kate Pelletier stated that there are at least four separate ordinances related to the sewer 
and that they should be consolidated at the same time a new ordinance is developed. She 
stated that there are two from 1992 related to betterment fees and user charges for 
metered systems, one from 2006 regulating sewer use, and one from 2007 concerning 
technical development guidelines.  
 
Dennis Lentz asked if there a deadline to finish these ordinances.  
 
Mike Dupuis stated that he understood it was too late to get anything on the ballot for the 
upcoming town meeting in June so he hoped they’d have something for the November 
elections instead.  
 
The Board agreed that Kate Pelletier and Mike Dupuis would work together with Joel 
Moulton to consolidate the existing sewer ordinances and finalize the proposed ordinance.  
 
 

B. Public hearing – and continued review of an application for a Shoreland 
Zoning permit to construct a 4’ x 60’ fixed pier with a 3’ x 55’ ramp, 6’ x 
33’ landing float and 10’ x 20’ main float at 21 Old Cottage Lane. 
Owner/applicant is Gretchen Stein (mailing address: 21 Old Cottage 
Lane, Eliot, ME  03903). Property can be identified as Map 50/Lot 3 and 
is located in the Limited Residential Shoreland zoning district. (PB11-
24) 
 

Zachary Taylor of Riverside & Pickering Marine represented the applicant. He stated that 
the property owner proposes to construct a 4’ x 60’ residential pier, a 3’ x 55’ ramp, and a 
6’ x 33’ landing float leading to a 10’ x 20’ main float. He stated that this pier would be 
located between two abutting piers and would project out into the channel the same 
distance as the existing structures. He stated that nothing had changed since the last 
meeting and that he hoped the Board would approve the application tonight. 
 
Steve Beckert explained the rules of a public hearing. 
 
Public hearing opened. 
 
No comments. 
 
Public hearing closed.  
 
Steve Beckert asked if the Board had any additional questions for the applicant.  



 

Town of Eliot Planning Board meeting of February 21
st
, 2012 3 

 
The Board had no additional questions for the applicant.  
 
MOTION: 
Jeff Duncan made the motion to approve the application for Gretchen Stein as presented 
and discussed, subject to the following conditions of approval: 

1. The property may be developed and used only in accordance with the plans, 
documents, materials submitted, and representations of the applicant made to the 
Planning Board. All elements and features of the use as presented to the Planning 
Board are conditions of approval and no changes in any of those elements or 
features are permitted unless such changes are first submitted to and approved by 
the Eliot Planning Board. 

2. Copies of approved permits from the Maine DEP and the US Army Corps of 
Engineers (if applicable) shall be provided to the CEO before construction on this 
project may begin. 

3. This permit is approved on the basis of information provided by the applicant in the 
record regarding his ownership of the property and boundary location.  The 
applicant has the burden of ensuring that he has a legal right to use the property 
and that he is measuring required setbacks from the legal boundary lines of the lot.  
The approval of this permit in no way relieves the applicant of this burden.  Nor 
does this permit approval constitute a resolution in favor of the applicant of any 
issues regarding the property boundaries, ownership, or similar title issues.  The 
permit holder would be well advised to resolve any such title problems before 
expending money in reliance on this permit. 

4. The applicant authorizes inspection of premises by the Code Enforcement Officer 
during the term of the permit for the purposes of permit compliance.    

Greg Whalen seconded the motion. 
Vote: 4-0, Chair concurs. 
 
Steve Beckert explained the 30-day appeal period. 
  

C. Public hearing – and continued review of a proposed 
ordinance amendment entitled, “Amendments to Chapter 1- 
General Provisions, Chapter 33 – Site Plan Review, Chapter 37- 
Streets & Sidewalks, Chapter 41- Subdivisions and Chapter 45- 
Zoning,” to update the street construction/design standards 
and other various access management standards. 

 
Kate Pelletier stated that the Board should have Draft #7 of the proposed 
ordinance. She stated the only change from the previous draft was on page 9, 
where language had been added requiring as-built plans for any newly 
constructed street serving three or more lots.  
 
Public hearing opened. 
 
No comments. 
 
Public hearing closed.  
 
MOTION: 



 

Town of Eliot Planning Board meeting of February 21
st
, 2012 4 

Jeff Duncan made the motion to forward the proposed ordinance amendment to 
the Board of Selectmen for inclusion on the June town warrant.  
Dennis Lentz seconded the motion. 
 
Discussion: 
Greg Whalen suggested increasing the technical consulting fee in Sec. 33-128 
from $1,500 to $2,500. He stated that he wanted to ensure there would be 
enough money available to the Town should a third party review or inspection be 
required.  
 
The Board agreed. 
 
AMENDED MOTION: 
Jeff Duncan amended his original motion to increase the technical consultant fee 
under Sec. 33-128 from $1,500 to $2,500. 
Dennis Lentz seconded the motion. 
Vote: 4-0, Chair concurs. 
 
Steve Beckert asked the Board if they wanted to make any recommendations to 
the Selectmen about the amendment being a referendum or open floor item at 
Town Meeting. 
 
The Board agreed to defer to the Board of Selectmen regarding the decision to 
have the proposed amendment voted on by referendum or an open floor vote.  
 

D. Review Draft #1 of a proposed amendment entitled 
‘’Amendments to Chapter 1, General Provisions, and Chapter 
45, Zoning, of the Municipal Code of Ordinances of the Town 
of Eliot, Maine, to allow veterinary hospitals in the Rural and 
Suburban zoning districts if they abut Route 236.” 

 
 
Kate Pelletier stated that the Board should have the first draft of the amendment to allow 
veterinary hospitals in the Rural and Suburban zones if they abut Route 236.  
 
Greg Whalen stated that he was concerned about the possibility of overnight boarding of 
animals. 
 
Kate Pelletier stated suggested restricting overnight boarding to veterinary hospitals in the 
Commercial/Industrial zone only.  
 
The Board agreed to prohibit overnight boarding of animals in all zones except the 
Commercial/Industrial zone.  
 
Larry Bouchard suggested also prohibiting outdoor kenneling of animals. 
 
The Board agreed.  
 
Kate Pelletier stated that she would incorporate those changes and have a revised draft 
for the Board at their next meeting. 



 

Town of Eliot Planning Board meeting of February 21
st
, 2012 5 

 
The Board agreed to schedule the public hearing for the proposed amendment on March 
6th, 2012. 
 
ITEM 7 - ACTION ITEM LIST  
 
ITEM 8 – CORRESPONDENCE, OTHER AS NEEDED 
 
Steve Beckert stated that the IT Committee had apparently recommended that 
the Planning Board and Board of Appeals meetings be video streamed and that 
the Selectmen were asking for the Boards’ input on the subject. He stated that he 
has several concerns including that the Planning Board and Board of Appeals 
are quasi-judicial boards and any recordings of the proceedings done by the 
town would become part of the official record and would thus have to be stored, 
maintained, and made available to the public. He stated that he has asked who 
would be responsible for this but hadn’t yet received an answer. He stated that 
he wanted to be sure the practice of video taping quasi-judicial boards was legal 
before agreeing to do it, but so far that question had not been answered. He 
stated that he’d of course pass along any information he receives to the Planning 
Board. 
  
ITEM 9 - SET AGENDA AND DATE FOR NEXT MEETNG 
 
The next regular Planning Board meeting was scheduled for March 6th, 2012. 
 
ITEM 10 – ADJOURN 
MOTION: 
Dennis Lentz made the motion to adjourn at 8:50 PM. 
Jeff Duncan seconded the motion. 
Vote: 4-0, Chair concurs.  

_____________________________ 
                                                                          Stephen Beckert, Chairman 

 
        Date approved: _______________ 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
______________________________ 
Kate Pelletier, Recording Secretary 


